


To: Henretty, Nigel @ons.gov.uk> 
Subject: FW: 848299/VR: Areas with high student population 

  

Hi Nigel, 

See original email below in yellow. Are there any updates we can share? I have a line from 
a similar question we had in the recent past I can probably find. 

Thanks, 

 

  

From: Pop Info <pop.info@ons.gov.uk> 
Sent: 29 July 2022 11:29 
To: Household Projections <Household.Projections@ons.gov.uk> 
Subject: FW: 848299/VR: Areas with high student population 

  

Hi, 

  

We have been forwarded the following enquiry by Census Customer Services regarding – 
Areas with high student population. 

  

Please could you either respond to the customer directly, copying pop.info and 
census.customer.services@ons.gov.uk into your response, or please advise me how you 
would like me to respond to the customer. 

  

Regards 

  

 

  

 
   

 |Stakeholder Engagement & Impact Team 

Population Statistics Division and Centre for International Migration 

HPM Transformation | Health, Population and Methods | 

Office for National Statistics | Swyddfa Ystadegau Gwladol 

 | mpsd.stakeholders@ons.gov.uk |www.ons.gov.uk | @ONS 



Subscribe to the ONS migration and population statistics mailing list. Our stakeholder 
privacy notice is viewable here. 

From: 2021 Census Customer Enquiries <2021.Census.Customer.Enquiries@ons.gov.uk> 
Sent: 29 July 2022 10:10 
To: Pop Info <pop.info@ons.gov.uk> 
Subject: FW: 848299/VR: Areas with high student population 

Hello Team 

Please see the email below with queries about the article Update on research and plans for 
population estimates and projections: May 2022. 

Please could you kindly advise if this is something you can respond to? 

I would appreciate a response by Friday 5 August or if you are unable to respond by then, 
advise me when you expect to provide your response by please? This information will 
greatly help us manage the expectations of our customers. 

Many thanks for your assistance. 

Regards 

 

Census Customer Services 
Census.CustomerServices@ons.gov.uk 
Office for National Statistics, Room 4300S, ONS, Segensworth Road, Titchfield, 
Hampshire, PO15 5RR 

 | Census Customer Services, Census Delivery, Health, Population 
and Methods Transformation | 

Office for National Statistics | Swyddfa Ystadegau Gwladol 

|  |  @ons.gov.uk 

| census.customerservices@ons.gov.uk | www.ons.gov.uk| @ONS 

 From: .com> 
Sent: 28 July 2022 18:54 
To: Census Customer Services <Census.Customer.Services@ons.gov.uk> 
Subject: 848299/VR: Areas with high student population 

I understand that work is being done to verify the accuracy of population projections for 
cities with high student populations. 

I am trying to find out which cities have been selected for the case studies as I cannot find 
this from the search function on the website, not can I find anything in upcoming releases. 

 I read the Update on research and plans for population estimates and projections: May 
2022 

Which explained that there would be case studies of relevant areas in three broad 
categories of LA. 





Office for National Statistics | Swyddfa Ystadegau Gwladol  

+44  | @ons.gov.uk | www.ons.gov.uk| @ONS 

 

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

It also said  

‘We plan to produce and publish the studies during summer 2022. The selection of the 
initial LAs for the case studies is in progress.’ 

Please can you tell me which places have been selected for the case studies and when will 
the results be available?  

Then, will this be applied to verify local level population projections for the next 10 years? 

Regards 

 
 

From: Henretty, Nigel @ons.gov.uk> 

Sent on: Friday, July 29, 2022 4:00:02 PM 

To: Household Projections <Household.Projections@ons.gov.uk> 

CC: @ons.gov.uk>; Dormon, Oliver @ons.gov.uk>; 
Townsend, Neil @ons.gov.uk> 

Subject: RE: 848299/VR: Areas with high student population 
 

  

Follow up: Follow up 

Start date: Monday, August 1, 2022 12:00:00 AM 



Due date: Monday, August 1, 2022 12:00:00 AM 
 

  

Hi  

I think the response needs to say something along the lines of: 

• The aim of the student case studies is to carry out analysis of different 
data sources to understand different types of student area better and to 
provide insight into the quality of existing estimates and guidance on the 
development of future estimates. These case studies will not provide a 
direct assessment of the accuracy of previous population projections as 
we would always expect differences between projections and 
subsequent population levels. 

• Future population and household projections will in turn benefit from 
having the best available data feeding into the assumptions which 
underpin them, for example by making use of the rebased series of mid-
year population estimates which we plan to publish in early 2023. 

• We have not yet announced which local authority districts will be 
included in the case studies. We plan to provide information about which 
areas have been selected in our population and migration statistics 
newsletter - that you can register to receive by subscribing to our mailing 
list - ahead of their publication planned for October 2022. 

  

Hope this helps. 

Best wishes, 

Nigel 

Nigel Henretty | Population Statistics Division | Office for National Statistics 
+44 @ons.gov.uk | www.ons.gov.uk | @ONS 

From: Household Projections <Household.Projections@ons.gov.uk> 
Sent: 29 July 2022 15:27 
To: Henretty, Nigel @ons.gov.uk> 
Subject: FW: 848299/VR: Areas with high student population 

Hi Nigel, 

See original email below in yellow. Are there any updates we can share? I have a line from a similar 
question we had in the recent past I can probably find. 

Thanks, 

 



  

From: Pop Info <pop.info@ons.gov.uk> 
Sent: 29 July 2022 11:29 
To: Household Projections <Household.Projections@ons.gov.uk> 
Subject: FW: 848299/VR: Areas with high student population 

Hi, 

We have been forwarded the following enquiry by Census Customer Services regarding – Areas 
with high student population. 

Please could you either respond to the customer directly, copying pop.info 
and census.customer.services@ons.gov.uk into your response, or please advise me how you would 
like me to respond to the customer. 

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

 Subscribe to the ONS migration and population statistics mailing list. Our stakeholder privacy notice 
is viewable here. 

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

I would appreciate a response by Friday 5 August or if you are unable to respond by then, advise 
me when you expect to provide your response by please? This information will greatly help us 
manage the expectations of our customers. 

Many thanks for your assistance. 

Regards 

 

 Census Customer Services 
Census.CustomerServices@ons.gov.uk 
Office for National Statistics, Room 4300S, ONS, Segensworth Road, Titchfield, Hampshire, PO15 
5RR 



  

  | Census Customer Services, Census Delivery, Health, Population and 
Methods Transformation | 

Office for National Statistics | Swyddfa Ystadegau Gwladol 

| @ons.gov.uk 

| census.customerservices@ons.gov.uk | www.ons.gov.uk| @ONS 

 From: .com com> 
Sent: 28 July 2022 18:54 
To: Census Customer Services <Census.Customer.Services@ons.gov.uk> 
Subject: 848299/VR: Areas with high student population 

I understand that work is being done to verify the accuracy of population projections for cities with high 
student populations. 

I am trying to find out which cities have been selected for the case studies as I cannot find this from the 
search function on the website, not can I find anything in upcoming releases. 

I read the Update on research and plans for population estimates and 

projections: May 2022 

Which explained that there would be case studies of relevant areas in three broad categories of LA. 

It also said 

‘We plan to produce and publish the studies during summer 2022. The 

selection of the initial LAs for the case studies is in progress.’ 

Please can you tell me which places have been selected for the case studies and when will the results be 

available? 

Then, will this be applied to verify local level population projections for the next 10 years? 

Regards 

 

 

  



Email chain 2 

From: Henretty, Nigel @ons.gov.uk> 

Sent on: Monday, July 25, 2022 2:00:10 PM 

To: Keane, Beck @ons.gov.uk> 

CC: Zafeiropoulou, Angeliki @ons.gov.uk>;  
@ons.gov.uk>; Payne, Greg @ons.gov.uk> 

Subject: RE: LA List for DPM publication 
 

  

Hi Beck, 

In addition to the LAs on your list for the DPM pilot, the following LAs are selected for the 
LA student case studies which will be published on the same day in October as the DPM 
pilot publication: 

1. Ceredigion 
2. Guildford 
3. Warwick 
4. Swansea 

  

Can you add these to the list of LAs to be included in the DPM pilots? We will add the ones 
we don’t have to the student LA case studies, so that everything is consistent. 

Best wishes, 

Nigel  

Nigel Henretty | Population Statistics Division | Office for National Statistics 
 | @ons.gov.uk | www.ons.gov.uk | @ONS 

From: Keane, Beck @ons.gov.uk> 
Sent: 25 July 2022 12:27 
To: Henretty, Nigel @ons.gov.uk> 
Cc: Zafeiropoulou, Angeliki @ons.gov.uk>;  

@ons.gov.uk>; Payne, Greg @ons.gov.uk> 
Subject: LA List for DPM publication 

Hi Nigel, 

Really helpful to chat to you earlier. Just to summarise what we (in DPM) think is the 
happening: 

• DPM will publish a ‘selection’ of LAs following our September milestone for annual 
to June 2022 estimates 

• The publication will be October, dependent on Census publication of SYOA 
estimates 



• The TFG on data for population change has been commissioned by Jen to explore 
which data sets we have in the office could indicate/give intelligence on population 
change 

• The ‘LA engagement’ work over the summer will feed into what we are doing and 
vice versa, so that we are all on the same page about what we know/where our gaps 
are 

  

Below is the list we are currently working to. If you think any are missed do let us know 
ASAP. we are keen to agree and finalise this list to allow planning and work to continue 
over the next month without risking our deadlines. We should then all be working to the 
same list of LAs over the summer for the plethora of activities to make sure we are all on 
the same page. 

Blackpool 

Boston 

Cambridge 

Coventry 

Gwynedd 

Islington 

Manchester 

Newham 

North Norfolk 

Westminster 

Do let me/Greg know if the lists are different and we can bring them together. 

Thanks 

Beck 

 

Rebecca Keane| Integrated Statistical Design for Population Statistics | HPM 
Transformation | Health, Population and Methods 

Office for National Statistics | Swyddfa Ystadegau Gwladol 

+44 @ons.gov.uk | www.ons.gov.uk| @ONS 

  



Email chain 3: 

From: Pop Info <pop.info@ons.gov.uk>  
Sent: 15 June 2022 15:44 
To: @icloud.com> 
Subject: RE: Update on research and plans for population estimates and projections: 
January 2022 

Hi  

Thanks for your enquiry about specific work or engagement with Canterbury. 

Work to finalise the selection of LAs to include in the initial case studies will be done after 
the publication of the first 2021 Census results on 28 June. We will liaise with 
representatives from the selected LAs at that point and will finalise the analysis to be 
included between then and the publication, planned for the summer. 

We would really appreciate it if you could give us some feedback on the service you 
received today - it takes less than a minute and your comments will help us to improve our 
services. 

Subscribe to the ONS migration and population statistics mailing list. Our stakeholder 
privacy notice is viewable here. 

If you need anything further please do not hesitate to contact us.  

Best regards, 

 

 

Team Lead, Stakeholder Engagement | Stakeholder Engagement Team and Impact, | 
Centre for International Migration | Population Statistics Division 

Health, Population and Methods Transformation | Office for National Statistics | Swyddfa 
Ystadegau Gwladol  

| pop.info@ons.gov.uk | www.ons.gov.uk | @ONS 

 

From: @icloud.com>  
Sent: 14 June 2022 11:23 
To: Pop Info <pop.info@ons.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: Update on research and plans for population estimates and projections: 
January 2022 

Thanks  that’s great.   

Has there been any specific work or engagement regarding Canterbury district? 



Best regards, 

  

 
On 14 Jun 2022, at 11:19, Pop Info <pop.info@ons.gov.uk> wrote: 

Hi  

Thanks for your enquiry about our research and plans for population estimates and 
projections. 

On 26 May 2022 we published the latest Update on research and plans for population 
estimates and projections.  

In Section 3 you will find the latest information about our case studies.  

When accessing any of our files please read the 'notes, terms and conditions' contained 
within them. 

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
Sent: 12 June 2022 16:52 
To: Pop Info <pop.info@ons.gov.uk> 
Subject: Update on research and plans for population estimates and projections: January 
2022 

Hi Nigel, 

I hope you can assist with two things.  



Is the above the most recent newsletter and also has any work been done including case 
studies regarding Canterbury? 

Could you let me have anything of relevance? 

Thank you.  

Best regards, 

  

From: Henretty, Nigel @ons.gov.uk> 

Sent on: Tuesday, June 14, 2022 10:47:50 AM 

To: Projections <Projections@ons.gov.uk> 

CC: ons.gov.uk>; Dormon, 
Oliver @ons.gov.uk> 

Subject: RE: Update on research and plans for population estimates and projections: 
January 2022 

 
  

Hi  

I think we just need to say that work to finalise the selection of LAs to include in the initial 
case studies will be done after the publication of the first 2021 Census results on 28th June. 
We will liaise with representatives from the selected LAs at that point and will finalise the 
analysis to be included between then and the publication, planned for the summer. 

Hope this helps. 

Best wishes, 

Nigel 

Nigel Henretty | Population Statistics Division | Office for National Statistics 
 | @ons.gov.uk | www.ons.gov.uk | @ONS 

From: Projections <Projections@ons.gov.uk> 
Sent: 14 June 2022 11:39 
To: Henretty, Nigel @ons.gov.uk> 
Subject: FW: Update on research and plans for population estimates and projections: 
January 2022 

Hi Nigel – is there anything we can say in response to the question in yellow? 
Thanks 

 

From: Pop Info <pop.info@ons.gov.uk> 
Sent: 14 June 2022 11:33 



To: Projections <Projections@ons.gov.uk> 
Cc: Population Estimates Unit <Population.Estimates.Unit@ons.gov.uk> 
Subject: FW: Update on research and plans for population estimates and projections: 
January 2022 

 

  

Just before you replied we received the email below from  

If you need anything further please do not hesitate to contact us. 

Best regards, 

   

| Team Lead, Stakeholder Engagement | Stakeholder Engagement Team and 
Impact, | Centre for International Migration | Population Statistics Division 

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

CC: @ons.gov.uk>; Dormon, Oliver @ons.gov.uk> 

Subject: RE: Update on research and plans for population estimates and projections: January 2022 

  

Follow up: Follow up 



Start date: Tuesday, June 14, 2022 12:00:00 AM 

Due date: Tuesday, June 14, 2022 12:00:00 AM 
 

  

Hi  

I think we just need to say that work to finalise the selection of LAs to include 
in the initial case studies will be done after the publication of the first 2021 
Census results on 28th June. We will liaise with representatives from the 
selected LAs at that point and will finalise the analysis to be included between 
then and the publication, planned for the summer. 

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
Subject: FW: Update on research and plans for population estimates and projections: January 2022 

Hi Nigel – is there anything we can say in response to the question in yellow? 
Thanks 

James 

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

 James, 

 Just before you replied we received the email below from  

If you need anything further please do not hesitate to contact us. 

Best regards, 

 

| Team Lead, Stakeholder Engagement | Stakeholder 
Engagement Team and Impact, | Centre for International Migration | 
Population Statistics Division 



Health, Population and Methods Transformation | Office for National Statistics 
| Swyddfa Ystadegau Gwladol 

| pop.info@ons.gov.uk | www.ons.gov.uk | @ONS 

  
From: @icloud.com> 
Sent: 14 June 2022 11:23 
To: Pop Info <pop.info@ons.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: Update on research and plans for population estimates and projections: January 2022 

 Thanks  that’s great.  

 Has there been any specific work or engagement regarding Canterbury district? 

 Best regards, 

  

  
On 14 Jun 2022, at 11:19, Pop Info <pop.info@ons.gov.uk> wrote: 

Hi  

Thanks for your enquiry about our research and plans for population estimates 
and projections. 

On 26 May 2022 we published the latest Update on research and plans for 
population estimates and projections. 

In Section 3 you will find the latest information about our case studies. 

When accessing any of our files please read the 'notes, terms and conditions' 
contained within them. 

We would really appreciate it if you could give us some feedback on the 
service you received today - it takes less than a minute and your comments 
will help us to improve our services. 

Subscribe to the ONS migration and population statistics mailing list. Our 
stakeholder privacy notice is viewable here. 

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
Subject: Update on research and plans for population estimates and projections: January 2022 

Hi Nigel, 

I hope you can assist with two things.  

Is the above the most recent newsletter and also has any work been done including case studies regarding 
Canterbury? 

Could you let me have anything of relevance? 

Thank you.  

Best regards, 

  




